
Board Packet

Page 1 of 58



South Walton Mosquito District 
2023-2024 Regular Board Meeting 

 Thursday, March 21, 2024 – 10:00AM 

1 | P a g e

Agenda 

CALL TO ORDER (State Time) 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
February 15, 2024, Regular Board Meeting (motion) 

PUBLIC COMMENT - NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

ADMINISTRATION REPORT 
Financial Report for February 
February Expenditures (motion) 

LEGAL 
February Billing (motion) 

OPERATIONS 
February Summary 
Old Town Stormwater Facility Workshop Outcome Update 
Code Compliance Workshop Outcome Update 
Strategic Plan: Goals, Objectives & Metrics 
County Land Lease Update 
DAG/Wharton Smith Update 

GMP 

COMMISSIONERS 
Seat – 1 Doug Liles 
Seat – 2 Steve Young 
Seat – 3 Kristine Faulk 

OLD BUSINESS 
Action Items: 
1. List of problematic breeding areas through poor percolation and/or draining. Still in process
2. Dump truck with driver rental.  Possible RFP to have a list of approved companies. Still in process
3. Disclaimer – we are not responsible for stormwater through our ditches. Still in process
4. Make a recommendation to the Board for sign company by value. Still in process.
5. Dump truck with driver rental.  Possible RFP to have a list of approved companies.

a. Send purchasing procedures to Amy Myers.  Still in process.

Next Scheduled 
Meeting(s): 

Regular Board Meetings:  

April 18, 2024 – 10 AM 

All Meetings/Workshop Held At: 
SWCMCD  

774 N County Hwy 393 
Santa Rosa Beach, FL  32459 

Page 2 of 58



South Walton Mosquito District 
2023-2024 Regular Board Meeting 

 Thursday, March 21, 2024 – 10:00AM 

2 | P a g e

6. Update Educational Reimbursement Plan. Still in process
a. Pre-approval for education reimbursement.
b. Florida schools

7. Commissioner Steve Young would like a meeting with Robert, IT, regarding:
a. VPN?
b. 2-Step Authenticity?
c. Is our data secure? How secure?
d. Update on Best Practices
e. Recommendations

8. Commissioner Doug Liles requested an ICPR model update.
9. Commissioner Steve Young's request to Start a Strategic Plan: Goals, Objectives & Metrics.
10. Amy Myers to write a letter regarding the use of the commissioner title in letters for Commissioner

Doug Liles.

NEW BUSINESS   

COMMENTS BY COMMISSION AND PUBLIC 

ADJOURNMENT (motion) (State time) 

Page 3 of 58



South Walton County Mosquito Control District 
2023-2024 Regular Board Meeting 

Thursday, February 15, 2024 – 10:00 AM 
Minutes of Meeting

The Board of Commissioners of the South Walton County Mosquito Control District held its Regular 
Board Meeting at the District Office at 774 North Highway 393, Santa Rosa Beach, Florida on February 
15, 2024, at 10:00 AM. 

Chairman Kristine Faulk called the meeting to order on February 15th at 10:00 AM and opened with a 
Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag.  

The Commissioners attending the meeting, Doug Liles, Steve Young, and Kristine Faulk, were present. 
Attorney Amy Myers was present. 

Staff Present:        Darrin Dunwald, Director 
Cammie Henderson, Office Manager 
Gerry Williams, Operations Manager 
Joe Deel, Environmental Operations 

Public: Adrianne Campbell 
Oliver Ross 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
January 18, 2024, Regular Board Meeting 

Request for a motion to accept the board minutes for January. 
Motioned by:  Commissioner Steve Young 

Seconded by: Commissioner Doug Liles 
Motion approved: Unanimously. 

PUBLIC COMMENT - NON-AGENDA ITEMS - None 

ADMINISTRATION’S REPORT 
Financial Report for January – Discussion ensued. 

Discussed the Certificate of Deposit that will mature next month and that we will need to 
reinvest.  After discussion, the board approved to reinvest in a 6-month CD. 

January Expenditures. Discussion ensued. 
Request for a motion to approve January expenditures as presented for CPA to review. 

Motioned by:  Commissioner Doug Liles 
Seconded by: Commissioner Steve Young 
Motion approved: Unanimously. 

LEGAL 
January Billing 

Commissioner Doug Liles asked about the MS4 permit and Amy Myers stated that we were 
not required to have an MS4 permit. 

Page 4 of 58



South Walton County Mosquito Control District 
2023-2024 Regular Board Meeting 

Thursday, February 15, 2024 – 10:00 AM 
 
 
 
 
 Request for a motion to approve January legal invoices. 

 Motioned by:  Commissioner Steve Young  
  Seconded by: Commissioner Doug Liles 

 Motion approved: Unanimously. 
  
OPERATIONS 

January Summary – Discussion ensued. 
 Commissioner Doug Liles asked about our large budget for chemicals.  Asking if we buy it 

only when we need it.  Gerry Williams indicated that we purchase the majority of our 
products over the summer.  Gerry Williams keeps a good eye on and is informed by 
companies if they see a shortage or any issues.  We don’t currently see any issues. 

 Commissioner Doug Liles asked if we had all products stored above past flood levels.  Gerry 
Williams confirmed that it was and that items were stored in tubs. 

Lee County Mosquito District Aerial Workshop 
 April 15 -18, 2024 (motion) 

  Request for a motion to approve attending Lee County Aerial Workshop. 
 Motioned by:  Commissioner Steve Young  
  Seconded by: Commissioner Doug Liles 

 Motion approved: Unanimously. 
Old Town Stormwater Facility Workshop at the District Headquarters 2/26/24 @ 1:00 pm 
 Discussion ensued. 

 Code Compliance workshop at the District Headquarters  
  (meet and greet, mosquito and ditch education) 2/28/24 @ 9:00 AM – Discussion 

ensued. 
 Construction Manager Contract – Discussion ensued. 
 
COMMISSIONERS 

Seat – 1 Doug Liles – None  
Seat – 2 Steve Young 

  Strategic Plan: Goals, Objectives & Metrics – Discussion ensued.  Steve will meet with 
Darrin and the group to review and start the process.  Commissioner Steve Young 
provided a presentation on Strategic Planning. 

Seat – 3 Kristine Faulk – None   
 
ADDITIONAL NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
  Amy to write the 5-year agreement for the use of 1 acre behind SWCMCD. (motion) 

  Request a motion to approve Resolution 24-002 contingent insertion and deletion 
approved by Director Darrin Dunwald and Attorney Amy Myers. 

       Motioned by:  Commissioner Steve Young  
   Seconded by: Commissioner Kristine Faulk 

  Motion approved: Unanimously. 

Page 5 of 58



South Walton County Mosquito Control District 
2023-2024 Regular Board Meeting 

Thursday, February 15, 2024 – 10:00 AM 
 
 
 
 
 Cammie Henderson requested approval for an expenditure of $41,745, for the purchase of 

the replacement drone that was not budgeted.  The insurance company claim loss paid 
$36,745.  

   Request to approve the $41,745 to purchase the replacement drone that was not budgeted. 
       Motioned by:  Commissioner Steve Young  
   Seconded by: Commissioner Kristine Faulk 

  Motion approved: Unanimously. 
 
OLD BUSINESS   
      Action Items: 

1) List of problematic breeding areas through poor percolation and/or draining. Still in 
process 

2) Dump truck with driver rental.  Possible RFP to have a list of approved companies. Still in 
process 

3) Disclaimer – we are not responsible for stormwater through our ditches. Still in process 
4) Dock of the Bay – follow up with a letter to Planning rejecting their decision. CLOSED per 

email. 
5) Make a recommendation to the Board for sign company by value. Still in process. 
6) Dump truck with driver rental.  Possible RFP to have a list of approved companies.  

Send purchasing procedures to Amy Myers.  Still in process. 
7) Update Educational Reimbursement Plan. Still in process 

a) Pre-approval for education reimbursement. 
b) Florida schools 

 
NEW BUSINESS  

     Action Items: 

1) Commissioner Steve Young would like a meeting with Robert, IT, regarding: 
a. VPN? 
b. 2-Step Authenticity? 
c. Is our data secure? How secure? 
d. Update on Best Practices 
e. Recommendations 

2) Commissioner Doug Liles requested an ICPR model update. 
3) Commissioner Steve Young request to Start Strategic Plan: Goals, Objectives & Metrics. 
4) Amy Myers to write a letter regarding the use of the commissioner title for Doug Liles. 

 
COMMENTS BY COMMISSION AND PUBLIC 

Commissioner Doug Liles stated his own opinion about stormwater but used his SWCMCD commissioner 
title in a letter.  Commissioner Steve Young is questioning whether Commissioner Doug can use his 
commissioner title when the board hasn’t approved the information and action.  Commissioner Doug 

Page 6 of 58



South Walton County Mosquito Control District 
2023-2024 Regular Board Meeting 

Thursday, February 15, 2024 – 10:00 AM 
 
 
 
 
Liles states that he is trying to indicate that SWCMCD doesn’t handle stormwater.  Commissioner Doug 
Liles's new concern is Senate Bill 102, Live Local Bill.  Commissioner Steve Young asked attorney Amy 
Myers's opinion on the use of the commissioner title.  Attorney Amy Myers stated that you have two 
hats, one that you wear as a private citizen and one as commissioner.  Any time you use that title you 
are acting as the commissioner.  It blurs the line that you write it as a private citizen and use the 
commissioner title.  Commissioner Doug Liles asked Attorney Amy Myers to write a letter to that and 
that Commissioner Doug Liles would send it to the Ethics Committee to weigh in on the matter.  
Discussion ensued. 

Request for motion to Adjourn by Chairperson Kristine Faulk 
 Motioned by: Commissioner Doug Liles 
 Seconded by: Commissioner Steve Young 

Motion approved: Unanimously. 
 
The meeting was adjourned by Chairperson Kristine Faulk at 11:54 AM.   

 
Chairperson Kristine Faulk: _______________________________________________ 
 
Commissioner Steve Young: __________________________________________ 
 
Commissioner Doug Liles: __________________________________________ 

Page 7 of 58



Administrative 
Report

Page 8 of 58



 

Interest Rates for February 
 
Ameris 
    Checking 3.47% 
    Money Market 4.65% 
Trustmark  
    Checking & Savings 2% 
    Wealth Acct 5.223% 
Florida FIT 5.51%  
Florida Class 5.414%  

 

Regular Board Meeting – March 21, 2024 

Financial Review – February 2024 – Snapshot 

 

• Received 88.6% of our Ad Valorem. 
• $292,487.36 Interest Income through February 146.2%. 

 

 

Banking Balances as of 2/29/2024               

                         

Page 9 of 58



 9:21 AM
 03/18/24
 Accrual Basis

 South Walton County Mosquito Control District
 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

 October 2023 through February 2024
TOTAL

Oct 23 Nov 23 Dec 23 Jan 24 Feb 24 Oct '23 - Feb 24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Income

311.000 · AD VALOREM

311.001 · Prior Year Taxes/Other 9,698.02 103.83 312.68 0.00 0.00 10,114.53

311.000 · AD VALOREM - Other 67,907.21 1,854,899.69 3,787,490.51 406,313.69 196,959.53 6,313,570.63 7,139,686.53 -826,115.90 88.43%

Total 311.000 · AD VALOREM 77,605.23 1,855,003.52 3,787,803.19 406,313.69 196,959.53 6,323,685.16 7,139,686.53 -816,001.37 88.57%

361.000 · Interest income 45,154.41 46,586.28 57,823.66 79,958.42 62,964.59 292,487.36 200,000.00 92,487.36 146.24%

364.000 · Disposition of Fixed Assets 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 90,000.00 -90,000.00 0.0%

369.000 · Other Misc Revenues 0.00 308.31 29.00 80.10 55.13 472.54 1,500.00 -1,027.46 31.5%

370 · Insurance Proceeds 0.00 0.00 0.00 36,745.00 0.00 36,745.00

380 · Other Sources 0.00 585.40 1,109.13 0.00 0.00 1,694.53 1,000.00 694.53 169.45%

Total Income 122,759.64 1,902,483.51 3,846,764.98 523,097.21 259,979.25 6,655,084.59 7,432,186.53 -777,101.94 89.54%

Gross Profit 122,759.64 1,902,483.51 3,846,764.98 523,097.21 259,979.25 6,655,084.59 7,432,186.53 -777,101.94 89.54%

Expense

10 · PERSONAL SERVICES

11 · Commissioner Salaries 1,107.72 1,107.72 1,661.58 1,107.72 1,107.72 6,092.46 14,400.00 -8,307.54 42.31%

12 · Regular Salaries and wages

16 · Compensated annual leave 7,167.98 3,526.09 10,694.14 4,508.88 5,204.40 31,101.49

12 · Regular Salaries and wages - Other 80,013.32 92,258.66 125,372.84 84,875.88 87,782.13 470,302.83 1,608,696.00 -1,138,393.17 29.24%

Total 12 · Regular Salaries and wages 87,181.30 95,784.75 136,066.98 89,384.76 92,986.53 501,404.32 1,608,696.00 -1,107,291.68 31.17%

13 · Other salaries and wages 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 25,000.00 -25,000.00 0.0%

14 · Overtime

18 · Compensated Compensatory Leave 960.82 28.00 115.20 121.80 250.52 1,476.34

14 · Overtime - Other 44.52 7.13 0.00 7.13 168.00 226.78 25,000.00 -24,773.22 0.91%

Total 14 · Overtime 1,005.34 35.13 115.20 128.93 418.52 1,703.12 25,000.00 -23,296.88 6.81%

10 · PERSONAL SERVICES - Other 0.00 128.25 -128.25 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total 10 · PERSONAL SERVICES 89,294.36 97,055.85 137,715.51 90,621.41 94,512.77 509,199.90 1,673,096.00 -1,163,896.10 30.44%

20 · PERSONAL SERVICES BENEFITS

21 · FICA Taxes 6,654.49 7,279.87 10,321.15 6,799.30 7,087.25 38,142.06 130,991.84 -92,849.78 29.12%

21.3 · Federal Unemployment 72.77 79.15 35.91 527.64 291.64 1,007.11

22 · Retirement contributions

22.2 · FRS paid by District 14,180.31 15,575.96 22,257.60 14,730.87 15,182.57 81,927.31

22 · Retirement contributions - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 236,692.00 -236,692.00 0.0%

Total 22 · Retirement contributions 14,180.31 15,575.96 22,257.60 14,730.87 15,182.57 81,927.31 236,692.00 -154,764.69 34.61%

23 · Life and Health Insurance

23.1 · AFLAC 9.96 203.63 -485.89 232.07 147.38 107.15

23.2 · Walton County Group Medical -767.94 -266.52 -387.72 -274.56 -274.56 -1,971.30

23.35 · Walton County Life (OCHS) -185.08 -82.98 -234.90 -156.60 -156.60 -816.16

23.4 · Life Insurance 1,091.25 690.50 417.15 344.40 743.75 3,287.05

 Page 1 of 5Page 10 of 58



 9:21 AM
 03/18/24
 Accrual Basis

 South Walton County Mosquito Control District
 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

 October 2023 through February 2024
311.000 · AD VALOREM - Other 67,907.21 1,854,899.69 3,787,490.51 406,313.69 196,959.53 6,313,570.63 7,139,686.53 -826,115.90 88.43%

Total 311.000 · AD VALOREM 77,605.23 1,855,003.52 3,787,803.19 406,313.69 196,959.53 6,323,685.16 7,139,686.53 -816,001.37 88.57%

23.5 · STD/LTD 1,021.61 1,021.61 1,193.07 1,051.16 1,073.79 5,361.24

23.55 · Dental -221.39 -241.56 -267.68 4,267.94 907.84 4,445.15

23.7 · Supplement Insurance Program 20.00 20.00 1,136.00 20.00 20.00 1,216.00

23.8 · BCBS of Florida - Medical Insur 31,850.68 38,926.08 38,385.08 33,598.48 25,071.25 167,831.57

23 · Life and Health Insurance - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 325,000.00 -325,000.00 0.0%

Total 23 · Life and Health Insurance 32,819.09 40,270.76 39,755.11 39,082.89 27,532.85 179,460.70 325,000.00 -145,539.30 55.22%

23.3 · Vision -248.97 -210.59 -292.08 1,136.84 129.81 515.01

24 · WORKERS COMP 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 15,000.00 -15,000.00 0.0%

25 · Unemployment Compensation 237.14 0.00 0.00 -50.00 0.00 187.14 15,000.00 -14,812.86 1.25%

26 · Other postemployment benefits

26.2 · Jose Hernandez -127.10 -127.10 2,365.70 -127.10 0.00 1,984.40

26.3 · Geraldine Via -105.40 -105.40 -105.40 2,124.60 0.00 1,808.40

26 · Other postemployment benefits - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,970.20 0.00 12,970.20

Total 26 · Other postemployment benefits -232.50 -232.50 2,260.30 14,967.70 0.00 16,763.00

Total 20 · PERSONAL SERVICES BENEFITS 53,482.33 62,762.65 74,337.99 77,195.24 50,224.12 318,002.33 722,683.84 -404,681.51 44.0%

30 · OPERATING EXPENSES

30.3 · Kristine Faulk 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 750.00 1,800.00 -1,050.00 41.67%

30.5 · J Doug Liles 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 750.00 1,800.00 -1,050.00 41.67%

30.6 · Stephen Young 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 750.00 1,800.00 -1,050.00 41.67%

31 · Professional Services

31.1 · Property Appraiser Fees 17,359.45 0.00 0.00 17,359.45 0.00 34,718.90 85,000.00 -50,281.10 40.85%

31.2 · Tax Collector Fees 193.96 37,205.09 75,756.04 8,126.28 3,939.20 125,220.57 142,793.73 -17,573.16 87.69%

31.4 · Medical Services 272.00 0.00 0.00 136.00 0.00 408.00 5,000.00 -4,592.00 8.16%

Total 31 · Professional Services 17,825.41 37,205.09 75,756.04 25,621.73 3,939.20 160,347.47 232,793.73 -72,446.26 68.88%

31.3 · Legal and Engineering Service

31.6 · Legal Services 3,971.98 0.00 2,930.00 0.00 2,825.00 9,726.98 50,000.00 -40,273.02 19.45%

31.3 · Legal and Engineering Service - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 20,000.00 240.00 20,240.00 56,000.00 -35,760.00 36.14%

Total 31.3 · Legal and Engineering Service 3,971.98 0.00 2,930.00 20,000.00 3,065.00 29,966.98 106,000.00 -76,033.02 28.27%

32 · ACCOUNTING & AUDITING 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 25,000.00 -25,000.00 0.0%

34.00 · Other Services

34.12 · Other services  IT Hosting

34.125 · Cumulus 2,826.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,826.00

34.12 · Other services  IT Hosting - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 46.34 0.00 46.34

Total 34.12 · Other services  IT Hosting 2,826.00 0.00 0.00 46.34 0.00 2,872.34

34.20 · UNIFIRST 1,192.12 1,085.47 659.33 1,807.61 924.55 5,669.08

34.31 · Tech Planet MONTHLY FEES 0.00 1,524.25 1,552.25 1,552.25 1,552.25 6,181.00

34.33 · Other Contractual Services 219.29 155.30 47.41 250.52 259.60 932.12

34.00 · Other Services - Other 0.00 0.00 105.00 0.00 0.00 105.00 34,600.00 -34,495.00 0.3%

 Page 2 of 5Page 11 of 58



 9:21 AM
 03/18/24
 Accrual Basis

 South Walton County Mosquito Control District
 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

 October 2023 through February 2024
311.000 · AD VALOREM - Other 67,907.21 1,854,899.69 3,787,490.51 406,313.69 196,959.53 6,313,570.63 7,139,686.53 -826,115.90 88.43%

Total 311.000 · AD VALOREM 77,605.23 1,855,003.52 3,787,803.19 406,313.69 196,959.53 6,323,685.16 7,139,686.53 -816,001.37 88.57%

Total 34.00 · Other Services 4,237.41 2,765.02 2,363.99 3,656.72 2,736.40 15,759.54 34,600.00 -18,840.46 45.55%

Total 30 · OPERATING EXPENSES 26,484.80 40,420.11 81,500.03 49,728.45 10,190.60 208,323.99 403,793.73 -195,469.74 51.59%

40 · TRAVEL & PER DIEM

40.1 · PER DIEM OR MEALS 0.00 864.00 1,847.38 2,980.96 1,488.00 7,180.34 30,000.00 -22,819.66 23.93%

40.2 · INCIDENTAL TRAVEL 0.00 0.00 -266.01 0.00 33.62 -232.39 1,000.00 -1,232.39 -23.24%

40.3 · PRIVIATE VEHICLES 0.00 0.00 1,576.58 0.00 2,970.11 4,546.69 14,000.00 -9,453.31 32.48%

40.4 · Hotel 2,301.46 6,741.21 -673.23 5,589.99 8,554.99 22,514.42 30,000.00 -7,485.58 75.05%

40.5 · Air Lines 1,805.64 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,805.64

Total 40 · TRAVEL & PER DIEM 4,107.10 7,605.21 2,484.72 8,570.95 13,046.72 35,814.70 75,000.00 -39,185.30 47.75%

41 · COMMUNICATION SERVICES

41.1 · Cellular Service 1,796.77 0.00 1,469.83 831.29 784.27 4,882.16

41.2 · Office Phone & Internet 2,035.28 0.00 1,026.97 1,026.97 1,027.32 5,116.54

41 · COMMUNICATION SERVICES - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 35,000.00 -35,000.00 0.0%

Total 41 · COMMUNICATION SERVICES 3,832.05 0.00 2,496.80 1,858.26 1,811.59 9,998.70 35,000.00 -25,001.30 28.57%

42 · FREIGHT SERVICES 210.52 39.54 70.62 84.83 118.59 524.10 4,000.00 -3,475.90 13.1%

43 · UTILITY SERVICES

43.02 · Water/Sewer -292.42 65.61 65.61 4,564.00 135.39 4,538.19

43.03 · Electrical 801.83 0.00 1,255.41 651.12 703.68 3,412.04

43.04 · GARBAGE SOLID WASTE SERVICES 195.94 97.97 0.00 97.97 97.97 489.85

43 · UTILITY SERVICES - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 20,000.00 -20,000.00 0.0%

Total 43 · UTILITY SERVICES 705.35 163.58 1,321.02 5,313.09 937.04 8,440.08 20,000.00 -11,559.92 42.2%

44 · RENTALS & LEASES 3,014.14 1,507.07 1,675.31 2,167.07 1,507.07 9,870.66 50,000.00 -40,129.34 19.74%

45 · INSURANCE

45.5 · Workers Comp Insurance 13,004.69 0.00 0.00 4,727.00 0.00 17,731.69

45.6 · General liability 50,329.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 50,329.00

45 · INSURANCE - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 85,000.00 -85,000.00 0.0%

Total 45 · INSURANCE 63,333.69 0.00 0.00 4,727.00 0.00 68,060.69 85,000.00 -16,939.31 80.07%

46 · REPAIR & MAINTENANCE SERVICES

46.11 · Maint Bldg/Ground by others 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 -10,000.00 0.0%

46.2 · Maintenance of Automotive Equip 807.60 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 807.60 3,000.00 -2,192.40 26.92%

46.3 · Maintenance of Equipment Office

46.31 · Software Maintenance Office Eq 1,746.99 254.99 254.99 6,268.99 2,299.79 10,825.75 31,000.00 -20,174.25 34.92%

46.33 · IFIX COMPUTERS 282.62 594.22 0.00 0.00 238.05 1,114.89

46.3 · Maintenance of Equipment Office - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%

Total 46.3 · Maintenance of Equipment Office 2,029.61 849.21 254.99 6,268.99 2,537.84 11,940.64 36,000.00 -24,059.36 33.17%

46.4 · Maint Other Equipment by others 630.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,243.41 1,873.41 4,000.00 -2,126.59 46.84%

46.5 · Maint of Build & Grounds by Dis 26.48 189.73 0.00 104.08 0.00 320.29 10,000.00 -9,679.71 3.2%

46.6 · Maint of equipment by DIstrict 1,048.44 514.86 896.71 304.93 367.03 3,131.97 15,000.00 -11,868.03 20.88%

 Page 3 of 5Page 12 of 58



 9:21 AM
 03/18/24
 Accrual Basis

 South Walton County Mosquito Control District
 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

 October 2023 through February 2024
311.000 · AD VALOREM - Other 67,907.21 1,854,899.69 3,787,490.51 406,313.69 196,959.53 6,313,570.63 7,139,686.53 -826,115.90 88.43%

Total 311.000 · AD VALOREM 77,605.23 1,855,003.52 3,787,803.19 406,313.69 196,959.53 6,323,685.16 7,139,686.53 -816,001.37 88.57%

46.61 · Maintenance material 0.00 20.98 0.00 0.00 0.00 20.98

Total 46 · REPAIR & MAINTENANCE SERVICES 4,542.13 1,574.78 1,151.70 6,678.00 4,148.28 18,094.89 78,000.00 -59,905.11 23.2%

47 · PRINTING & BINDING 178.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 60.00 238.00 5,000.00 -4,762.00 4.76%

48 · PROMOTIONAL ACTIVITIES 1,403.00 411.51 1,651.84 2,030.27 787.53 6,284.15 20,000.00 -13,715.85 31.42%

49 · OTHER CURRENT CHARGES

49.1 · Other Government Agencies 622.83 470.76 225.05 25.00 52.60 1,396.24

49.2 · advertising required by law 7.00 7.00 7.00 9.00 9.00 39.00

49 · OTHER CURRENT CHARGES - Other 37.00 71.00 318.13 523.27 293.48 1,242.88 8,000.00 -6,757.12 15.54%

Total 49 · OTHER CURRENT CHARGES 666.83 548.76 550.18 557.27 355.08 2,678.12 8,000.00 -5,321.88 33.48%

50 · SUPPLIES/MATERIALS

50.1 · Culligan 62.53 36.04 0.00 126.53 0.00 225.10

50.3 · Employee Committee 32.96 273.71 4,154.87 38.96 26.99 4,527.49 7,500.00 -2,972.51 60.37%

51 · Office Supplies 121.10 287.92 232.88 423.06 343.28 1,408.24 12,500.00 -11,091.76 11.27%

Total 50 · SUPPLIES/MATERIALS 216.59 597.67 4,387.75 588.55 370.27 6,160.83 20,000.00 -13,839.17 30.8%

52 · Operating Supplies

52.1 · Gasoline Oil Lubricant

52.11 · Gasoline 3,282.54 1,177.72 1,862.04 1,346.83 2,105.01 9,774.14

52.12 · Diesel 1,089.94 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,008.61 2,098.55

52.13 · Gasoline other than District 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 196.93 196.93

52.1 · Gasoline Oil Lubricant - Other 0.00 665.58 299.96 0.00 0.00 965.54 50,000.00 -49,034.46 1.93%

Total 52.1 · Gasoline Oil Lubricant 4,372.48 1,843.30 2,162.00 1,346.83 3,310.55 13,035.16 50,000.00 -36,964.84 26.07%

52.2 · Chemicals Solvents Additives

52.201 · PermaSease 15,006.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 15,006.25 91,000.00 -75,993.75 16.49%

52.202 · Fyfanon 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 84,000.00 -84,000.00 0.0%

52.204 · VMX Vectomax FG 0.00 15,398.00 15,398.00 0.00 15,398.00 46,194.00 47,000.00 -806.00 98.29%

52.205 · Altosid P-35 0.00 27,258.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 27,258.00 235,000.00 -207,742.00 11.6%

52.206 · Remoatri 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 154,000.00 -154,000.00 0.0%

52.207 · Wisdom TC Flowable 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 300.00 -300.00 0.0%

52.21 · Natular XRT Tablet 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 70,560.00 70,560.00 145,000.00 -74,440.00 48.66%

52.22 · VLX VCTOLEX WDG 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 0.0%

52.23 · NatularG30  Clarke 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 98,000.00 -98,000.00 0.0%

52.25 · Fourstar BTI CRG 35 lb 19,488.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 19,488.00 58,800.00 -39,312.00 33.14%

52.28 · VectoBac WDG 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,200.00 -2,200.00 0.0%

52.2 · Chemicals Solvents Additives - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 40,829.26 -40,829.26 0.0%

Total 52.2 · Chemicals Solvents Additives 34,494.25 42,656.00 15,398.00 0.00 85,958.00 178,506.25 959,129.26 -780,623.01 18.61%

52.3 · Clothing and Wearing Apparel

52.32 · Boots 507.76 0.00 460.25 150.00 150.00 1,268.01

52.3 · Clothing and Wearing Apparel - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 111.50 111.50 10,000.00 -9,888.50 1.12%

 Page 4 of 5Page 13 of 58



 9:21 AM
 03/18/24
 Accrual Basis

 South Walton County Mosquito Control District
 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

 October 2023 through February 2024
311.000 · AD VALOREM - Other 67,907.21 1,854,899.69 3,787,490.51 406,313.69 196,959.53 6,313,570.63 7,139,686.53 -826,115.90 88.43%

Total 311.000 · AD VALOREM 77,605.23 1,855,003.52 3,787,803.19 406,313.69 196,959.53 6,323,685.16 7,139,686.53 -816,001.37 88.57%

Total 52.3 · Clothing and Wearing Apparel 507.76 0.00 460.25 150.00 261.50 1,379.51 10,000.00 -8,620.49 13.8%

52.4 · Misc Supplies & Incidentals

52.41 · Yellow Fly 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,961.03 1,961.03 20,000.00 -18,038.97 9.81%

52.411 · UAS - Drone Supplies 5,177.84 -80.01 -798.00 137.76 179.99 4,617.58 40,000.00 -35,382.42 11.54%

52.42 · Mosquito 366.43 78.60 0.00 485.86 2,436.75 3,367.64 2,000.00 1,367.64 168.38%

52.43 · DITCHES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 0.0%

52.44 · Safety 429.23 26.99 0.00 189.30 173.96 819.48 2,000.00 -1,180.52 40.97%

52.45 · Shop 2,652.36 322.73 232.76 237.29 16.32 3,461.46 5,000.00 -1,538.54 69.23%

52.47 · Chickens

52.48 · Lab

52.49 · Fish

52.4 · Misc Supplies & Incidentals - Other 4.99 4.99 0.00 4.99 100.0%

Total 52.4 · Misc Supplies & Incidentals 8,625.86 348.31 -565.24 1,050.21 4,773.04 14,232.18 72,000.00 -57,767.82 19.77%

52.5 · Tool and small implements 2,295.00 208.99 0.00 0.00 19.98 2,523.97 10,000.00 -7,476.03 25.24%

Total 52 · Operating Supplies 50,295.35 45,056.60 17,455.01 2,547.04 94,323.07 209,677.07 1,101,129.26 -891,452.19 19.04%

54 · BOOKS, DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 114.75 0.00 149.90 0.00 473.20 737.85 35,000.00 -34,262.15 2.11%

55 · TRAINING

55.1 · Conferences 4,126.36 1,027.00 6,510.00 961.93 1,868.00 14,493.29

55.2 · Classroom Education 279.00 0.00 4,230.00 1,600.00 120.00 6,229.00

55.3 · Virtual Training 17.85 17.85 197.85 0.00 193.92 427.47

55 · TRAINING - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 65,000.00 -65,000.00 0.0%

Total 55 · TRAINING 4,423.21 1,044.85 10,937.85 2,561.93 2,181.92 21,149.76 65,000.00 -43,850.24 32.54%

60 · CAPITAL OUTLAY

60.1 · DAG 23,336.68 1,756.70 0.00 0.00 4,927.75 30,021.13

60.2 · Capital Outlay – New Admin 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,556,000.00 -5,556,000.00 0.0%

60.3 · Capital Outlay - New Shop 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,030,000.00 -3,030,000.00 0.0%

60.4 · Capital Outlay - New Chick Coop 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 35,000.00 -35,000.00 0.0%

60 · CAPITAL OUTLAY - Other 101,395.50 0.00 -3,601.00 10,744.86 335,026.67 443,566.03 670,500.00 -226,933.97 66.16%

Total 60 · CAPITAL OUTLAY 124,732.18 1,756.70 -3,601.00 10,744.86 339,954.42 473,587.16 9,291,500.00 -8,817,912.84 5.1%

66900 · Reconciliation Discrepancies 0.00 0.00 -0.04 0.04 0.00 0.00

89 · CONTINQENCY 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 700,000.00 -700,000.00 0.0%

Total Expense 431,036.38 260,544.88 334,285.19 265,974.26 615,002.27 1,906,842.98 14,392,202.83 -12,485,359.85 13.25%
Net Income -308,276.74 1,641,938.63 3,512,479.79 257,122.95 -355,023.02 4,748,241.61 -6,960,016.30 11,708,257.91 -68.22%

 Page 5 of 5Page 14 of 58



 9:08 AM
 03/18/24
 Accrual Basis

 South Walton County Mosquito Control District
 Profit & Loss Prev Year Comparison

 October 2023 through February 2024

Oct '23 - Feb 24 Oct '22 - Feb 23 $ Change % Change

Income

130.005 · Receivable - Insurance 0.00 -83.93 83.93 100.0%

311.000 · AD VALOREM

311.001 · Prior Year Taxes/Other 10,114.53 225.38 9,889.15 4,387.77%

311.000 · AD VALOREM - Other 6,313,570.63 5,470,685.04 842,885.59 15.41%

Total 311.000 · AD VALOREM 6,323,685.16 5,470,910.42 852,774.74 15.59%

361.000 · Interest income 292,487.36 148,046.00 144,441.36 97.57%

364.000 · Disposition of Fixed Assets 0.00 77,200.00 -77,200.00 -100.0%

369.000 · Other Misc Revenues 472.54 300.73 171.81 57.13%

370 · Insurance Proceeds 36,745.00 0.00 36,745.00 100.0%

380 · Other Sources 1,694.53 858.31 836.22 97.43%

Total Income 6,655,084.59 5,697,231.53 957,853.06 16.81%

Gross Profit 6,655,084.59 5,697,231.53 957,853.06 16.81%

Expense

10 · PERSONAL SERVICES

11 · Commissioner Salaries 6,092.46 4,430.88 1,661.58 37.5%

12 · Regular Salaries and wages

16 · Compensated annual leave 31,101.49 22,204.93 8,896.56 40.07%

12 · Regular Salaries and wages - Other 470,302.83 401,844.73 68,458.10 17.04%

Total 12 · Regular Salaries and wages 501,404.32 424,049.66 77,354.66 18.24%

14 · Overtime

18 · Compensated Compensatory Leave 1,476.34 953.93 522.41 54.76%

14 · Overtime - Other 226.78 1,747.07 -1,520.29 -87.02%

Total 14 · Overtime 1,703.12 2,701.00 -997.88 -36.95%

10 · PERSONAL SERVICES - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total 10 · PERSONAL SERVICES 509,199.90 431,181.54 78,018.36 18.09%

20 · PERSONAL SERVICES BENEFITS

21 · FICA Taxes 38,142.06 31,745.37 6,396.69 20.15%

21.3 · Federal Unemployment 1,007.11 927.29 79.82 8.61%

 Page 1 of 6Page 15 of 58



 9:08 AM
 03/18/24
 Accrual Basis

 South Walton County Mosquito Control District
 Profit & Loss Prev Year Comparison

 October 2023 through February 2024

Oct '23 - Feb 24 Oct '22 - Feb 23 $ Change % Change

22 · Retirement contributions

22.2 · FRS paid by District 81,927.31 61,177.96 20,749.35 33.92%

Total 22 · Retirement contributions 81,927.31 61,177.96 20,749.35 33.92%

23 · Life and Health Insurance

23.1 · AFLAC 107.15 -207.79 314.94 151.57%

23.2 · Walton County Group Medical -1,971.30 89,491.80 -91,463.10 -102.2%

23.35 · Walton County Life (OCHS) -816.16 -104.13 -712.03 -683.79%

23.4 · Life Insurance 3,287.05 1,636.90 1,650.15 100.81%

23.5 · STD/LTD 5,361.24 6,400.26 -1,039.02 -16.23%

23.55 · Dental 4,445.15 4,094.71 350.44 8.56%

23.7 · Supplement Insurance Program 1,216.00 1,216.00 0.00 0.0%

23.8 · BCBS of Florida - Medical Insur 167,831.57 0.00 167,831.57 100.0%

Total 23 · Life and Health Insurance 179,460.70 102,527.75 76,932.95 75.04%

23.3 · Vision 515.01 92.47 422.54 456.95%

25 · Unemployment Compensation 187.14 -108.00 295.14 273.28%

26 · Other postemployment benefits

26.2 · Jose Hernandez 1,984.40 6,445.40 -4,461.00 -69.21%

26.3 · Geraldine Via 1,808.40 6,323.95 -4,515.55 -71.4%

26 · Other postemployment benefits - Other 12,970.20 0.00 12,970.20 100.0%

Total 26 · Other postemployment benefits 16,763.00 12,769.35 3,993.65 31.28%

Total 20 · PERSONAL SERVICES BENEFITS 318,002.33 209,132.19 108,870.14 52.06%

30 · OPERATING EXPENSES

30.3 · Kristine Faulk 750.00 750.00 0.00 0.0%

30.4 · Donna Johns 0.00 295.22 -295.22 -100.0%

30.5 · J Doug Liles 750.00 750.00 0.00 0.0%

30.6 · Stephen Young 750.00 0.00 750.00 100.0%

31 · Professional Services

31.1 · Property Appraiser Fees 34,718.90 36,573.82 -1,854.92 -5.07%

31.2 · Tax Collector Fees 125,220.57 109,601.05 15,619.52 14.25%

31.4 · Medical Services 408.00 599.00 -191.00 -31.89%

 Page 2 of 6Page 16 of 58



 9:08 AM
 03/18/24
 Accrual Basis

 South Walton County Mosquito Control District
 Profit & Loss Prev Year Comparison

 October 2023 through February 2024

Oct '23 - Feb 24 Oct '22 - Feb 23 $ Change % Change

Total 31 · Professional Services 160,347.47 146,773.87 13,573.60 9.25%

31.3 · Legal and Engineering Service

31.6 · Legal Services 9,726.98 4,089.57 5,637.41 137.85%

31.3 · Legal and Engineering Service - Other 20,240.00 0.00 20,240.00 100.0%

Total 31.3 · Legal and Engineering Service 29,966.98 4,089.57 25,877.41 632.77%

32 · ACCOUNTING & AUDITING 0.00 1,500.00 -1,500.00 -100.0%

34.00 · Other Services

34.12 · Other services  IT Hosting

34.125 · Cumulus 2,826.00 1,944.00 882.00 45.37%

34.12 · Other services  IT Hosting - Other 46.34 0.00 46.34 100.0%

Total 34.12 · Other services  IT Hosting 2,872.34 1,944.00 928.34 47.75%

34.20 · UNIFIRST 5,669.08 4,259.59 1,409.49 33.09%

34.31 · Tech Planet MONTHLY FEES 6,181.00 4,874.00 1,307.00 26.82%

34.33 · Other Contractual Services 932.12 1,435.74 -503.62 -35.08%

34.00 · Other Services - Other 105.00 285.00 -180.00 -63.16%

Total 34.00 · Other Services 15,759.54 12,798.33 2,961.21 23.14%

Total 30 · OPERATING EXPENSES 208,323.99 166,956.99 41,367.00 24.78%

40 · TRAVEL & PER DIEM

40.1 · PER DIEM OR MEALS 7,180.34 3,429.78 3,750.56 109.35%

40.2 · INCIDENTAL TRAVEL -232.39 124.00 -356.39 -287.41%

40.3 · PRIVIATE VEHICLES 4,546.69 2,484.85 2,061.84 82.98%

40.4 · Hotel 22,514.42 8,140.70 14,373.72 176.57%

40.5 · Air Lines 1,805.64 2,538.81 -733.17 -28.88%

Total 40 · TRAVEL & PER DIEM 35,814.70 16,718.14 19,096.56 114.23%

41 · COMMUNICATION SERVICES

41.1 · Cellular Service 4,882.16 5,020.23 -138.07 -2.75%

41.2 · Office Phone & Internet 5,116.54 4,977.94 138.60 2.78%

41 · COMMUNICATION SERVICES - Other 0.00 1,462.40 -1,462.40 -100.0%

Total 41 · COMMUNICATION SERVICES 9,998.70 11,460.57 -1,461.87 -12.76%

42 · FREIGHT SERVICES 524.10 4,054.25 -3,530.15 -87.07%

 Page 3 of 6Page 17 of 58



 9:08 AM
 03/18/24
 Accrual Basis

 South Walton County Mosquito Control District
 Profit & Loss Prev Year Comparison

 October 2023 through February 2024

Oct '23 - Feb 24 Oct '22 - Feb 23 $ Change % Change

43 · UTILITY SERVICES

43.02 · Water/Sewer 4,538.19 442.75 4,095.44 925.0%

43.03 · Electrical 3,412.04 2,934.66 477.38 16.27%

43.04 · GARBAGE SOLID WASTE SERVICES 489.85 471.00 18.85 4.0%

Total 43 · UTILITY SERVICES 8,440.08 3,848.41 4,591.67 119.31%

44 · RENTALS & LEASES 9,870.66 7,400.41 2,470.25 33.38%

45 · INSURANCE

45.3 · FLOOD INSURANCE 0.00 3,682.00 -3,682.00 -100.0%

45.5 · Workers Comp Insurance 17,731.69 3,980.75 13,750.94 345.44%

45.6 · General liability 50,329.00 49,839.75 489.25 0.98%

Total 45 · INSURANCE 68,060.69 57,502.50 10,558.19 18.36%

46 · REPAIR & MAINTENANCE SERVICES

46.2 · Maintenance of Automotive Equip 807.60 575.57 232.03 40.31%

46.3 · Maintenance of Equipment Office

46.31 · Software Maintenance Office Eq 10,825.75 11,327.48 -501.73 -4.43%

46.33 · IFIX COMPUTERS 1,114.89 2,692.44 -1,577.55 -58.59%

46.3 · Maintenance of Equipment Office - Other 0.00 1,245.25 -1,245.25 -100.0%

Total 46.3 · Maintenance of Equipment Office 11,940.64 15,265.17 -3,324.53 -21.78%

46.4 · Maint Other Equipment by others 1,873.41 322.52 1,550.89 480.87%

46.5 · Maint of Build & Grounds by Dis 320.29 1,237.23 -916.94 -74.11%

46.6 · Maint of equipment by DIstrict 3,131.97 2,939.62 192.35 6.54%

46.61 · Maintenance material 20.98 5.07 15.91 313.81%

Total 46 · REPAIR & MAINTENANCE SERVICES 18,094.89 20,345.18 -2,250.29 -11.06%

47 · PRINTING & BINDING 238.00 881.94 -643.94 -73.01%

48 · PROMOTIONAL ACTIVITIES 6,284.15 2,008.06 4,276.09 212.95%

49 · OTHER CURRENT CHARGES

49.1 · Other Government Agencies 1,396.24 755.23 641.01 84.88%

49.2 · advertising required by law 39.00 2,928.45 -2,889.45 -98.67%

49 · OTHER CURRENT CHARGES - Other 1,242.88 270.40 972.48 359.65%

Total 49 · OTHER CURRENT CHARGES 2,678.12 3,954.08 -1,275.96 -32.27%

 Page 4 of 6Page 18 of 58



 9:08 AM
 03/18/24
 Accrual Basis

 South Walton County Mosquito Control District
 Profit & Loss Prev Year Comparison

 October 2023 through February 2024

Oct '23 - Feb 24 Oct '22 - Feb 23 $ Change % Change

50 · SUPPLIES/MATERIALS

50.1 · Culligan 225.10 260.52 -35.42 -13.6%

50.3 · Employee Committee 4,527.49 4,104.73 422.76 10.3%

51 · Office Supplies 1,408.24 2,465.27 -1,057.03 -42.88%

Total 50 · SUPPLIES/MATERIALS 6,160.83 6,830.52 -669.69 -9.8%

52 · Operating Supplies

52.1 · Gasoline Oil Lubricant

52.11 · Gasoline 9,774.14 9,522.87 251.27 2.64%

52.12 · Diesel 2,098.55 3,808.70 -1,710.15 -44.9%

52.13 · Gasoline other than District 196.93 0.00 196.93 100.0%

52.1 · Gasoline Oil Lubricant - Other 965.54 182.10 783.44 430.23%

Total 52.1 · Gasoline Oil Lubricant 13,035.16 13,513.67 -478.51 -3.54%

52.2 · Chemicals Solvents Additives

52.201 · PermaSease 15,006.25 0.00 15,006.25 100.0%

52.202 · Fyfanon 0.00 19,001.00 -19,001.00 -100.0%

52.204 · VMX Vectomax FG 46,194.00 43,890.00 2,304.00 5.25%

52.205 · Altosid P-35 27,258.00 0.00 27,258.00 100.0%

52.21 · Natular XRT Tablet 70,560.00 8,606.40 61,953.60 719.86%

52.23 · NatularG30  Clarke 0.00 38,760.00 -38,760.00 -100.0%

52.25 · Fourstar BTI CRG 35 lb 19,488.00 0.00 19,488.00 100.0%

52.26 · Altosid XR Slim 0.00 36,009.60 -36,009.60 -100.0%

Total 52.2 · Chemicals Solvents Additives 178,506.25 146,267.00 32,239.25 22.04%

52.3 · Clothing and Wearing Apparel

52.32 · Boots 1,268.01 675.15 592.86 87.81%

52.3 · Clothing and Wearing Apparel - Other 111.50 528.72 -417.22 -78.91%

Total 52.3 · Clothing and Wearing Apparel 1,379.51 1,203.87 175.64 14.59%

52.4 · Misc Supplies & Incidentals

52.41 · Yellow Fly 1,961.03 0.00 1,961.03 100.0%

52.411 · UAS - Drone Supplies 4,617.58 870.49 3,747.09 430.46%

52.42 · Mosquito 3,367.64 584.37 2,783.27 476.29%

 Page 5 of 6Page 19 of 58



 9:08 AM
 03/18/24
 Accrual Basis

 South Walton County Mosquito Control District
 Profit & Loss Prev Year Comparison

 October 2023 through February 2024

Oct '23 - Feb 24 Oct '22 - Feb 23 $ Change % Change

52.43 · DITCHES 0.00 1,273.54 -1,273.54 -100.0%

52.44 · Safety 819.48 -11.48 830.96 7,238.33%

52.45 · Shop 3,461.46 1,511.66 1,949.80 128.98%

52.47 · Chickens 3,573.77 1,034.54 2,539.23 245.45%

52.48 · Lab 1,442.33 5,898.64 -4,456.31 -75.55%

52.49 · Fish 437.54 2,621.36 -2,183.82 -83.31%

52.4 · Misc Supplies & Incidentals - Other 953.49 3,529.28 -2,575.79 -72.98%

Total 52.4 · Misc Supplies & Incidentals 20,634.32 17,312.40 3,321.92 19.19%

52.5 · Tool and small implements 2,523.97 1,374.00 1,149.97 83.7%

Total 52 · Operating Supplies 216,079.21 179,670.94 36,408.27 20.26%

54 · BOOKS, DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 737.85 9,648.46 -8,910.61 -92.35%

55 · TRAINING

55.1 · Conferences 14,493.29 4,040.00 10,453.29 258.75%

55.2 · Classroom Education 6,229.00 9,513.15 -3,284.15 -34.52%

55.3 · Virtual Training 427.47 100.00 327.47 327.47%

Total 55 · TRAINING 21,149.76 13,653.15 7,496.61 54.91%

60 · CAPITAL OUTLAY

60.1 · DAG 30,021.13 18,357.80 11,663.33 63.53%

60 · CAPITAL OUTLAY - Other 443,566.03 395,280.39 48,285.64 12.22%

Total 60 · CAPITAL OUTLAY 473,587.16 413,638.19 59,948.97 14.49%

66900 · Reconciliation Discrepancies 0.00 168.27 -168.27 -100.0%

Total Expense 1,913,245.12 1,559,053.79 354,191.33 22.72%
Net Income 4,741,839.47 4,138,177.74 603,661.73 14.59%

 Page 6 of 6Page 20 of 58



Legal

Page 21 of 58



Page 22 of 58



Operations

Page 23 of 58



Page 24 of 58



February 2024 Lab Summary 

Mosquito Surveillance 

February’s total mosquitoes, obtained from permanent traps, was 288. A small dip from the prior 
month (Figure 1). This February had fewer totals than this time last year (Figure 2). According to 
NOAA, this past winter had above normal rain yet near normal (cooler) temperatures. Last winter, 
temperatures were above normal and dryer. The cooler weather slows down mosquito 
development, which gave us a reprieve. If we continue to have above normal rain as we warm, 
we can expect a spike in populations. 

Figure 1. 

     
*Totals are from permanent trap sites only 

 
*Totals are from permanent trap sites only 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Monthly Totals for January and February 2024

January Totals (Overall 384) February Totals (Overall 288)

0

50

100

150

200

250

February 2023 and 2024 Totals

February 2023 Totals (Overall 1017) February 2024 Totals (Overall 288)

Page 25 of 58



February 2024 

 

Sentinel Chicken Arbovirus Surveillance 

Sentinel Chickens was suspended in February. Coop site maintenance was 
in process with anticipation of their return in March to the field. 

Page 26 of 58



Page 27 of 58



Page 28 of 58



Page 29 of 58



Page 30 of 58



Page 31 of 58



Page 32 of 58



Page 33 of 58



 

 

 

Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal 

 

 

 

 

South Walton County Mosquito Control District 

 

 

 

Wharton-Smith, Inc.  

Submitted March 14, 2024 

APPENDIX A

Page 34 of 58



 

  

TABLE OF CONTENTS  
 

 

Per Section 3.2.3 of the executed A133-2019 Contract Agreement  

 

Section 1   3.2.3.4  Narrative Summary 

   3.2.3.5   

Section 2   3.2.3.1  Contract Documents List 

Section 3   3.2.3.2  Clarifications & Assumptions 

Section 4   3.2.3.3  Summary Tabulation of Guaranteed Maximum Price 

Section 5   3.2.3.3  Direct Cost of Work 

Section 6   3.2.3.3  General Conditions (Staffing) Costs 

Section 7   3.2.3.3  General Requirements Costs 

APPENDIX A
Page 35 of 58



 

  

Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal 

New Headquarters 

South Walton County Mosquito Control District 

Section 1: 

Narrative Summary 
March 14, 2024 

South Walton County Mosquito Control District 

Attn: Mr. Darrin Dunwald, Director 

774 N County Hwy 393 

Santa Rosa Beach, FL 32459 

 

Dear Mr. Dunwald, 

Contained herein you will find Wharton-Smith, Inc.’s Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) proposal for the South Walton 

County Mosquito Control District (SWCMCD) New Headquarters in Santa Rosa Beach, FL. This submission is in 

accordance with section 3.2.3 of the executed A133-2019 Contract Agreement for Construction Manager as Constructor 

Services. 

This proposal establishes the GMP for Phase 1 of the project. The GMP is based on the documents provided by DAG 

Architects, Inc. as outlined in Section 2 of this proposal. Clarifications of and assumptions made regarding this proposal 

are outlined in Section 3. 

The total value of this GMP proposal is $8,010,419 and is comprised of direct costs per proposed subcontractors’ bids 

limited to scopes as outlined, proposed general conditions (staffing) and general requirements costs, allowance(s) as 

indicated, contingencies, insurance and bond costs and the allowed CM fee. Sections 4, 5, 6 and 7 outline the specific 

details of the costs included in this GMP proposal. 

In order to maintain overall project schedule, this GMP proposal must be accepted by March 21, 2024. Pending 

acceptance, Wharton-Smith’s commencement of construction is May 1, 2024 following adequate time for subcontract 

issuance, submittal processing and material procurement. The anticipated date of Substantial Completion upon which 

this proposal is based is April 30, 2025.  

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Wharton-Smith, Inc. 

AJ Brown 

Area Manager 

  

APPENDIX A
Page 36 of 58



 

  

Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal 

New Headquarters 

South Walton County Mosquito Control District 

Section 2:  

Contract Documents List 
 

1. Civil; from O’Connell & Associates, revision #3 - dated 10/18/2023; labeled “Preliminary; not for construction” 

 

APPENDIX A
Page 37 of 58



 

  

Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal 

New Headquarters 

South Walton County Mosquito Control District 

 

2. Structural; from O’Connell & Associates, dated 10/04/2023; labeled “Bid Set” 

 

 
 

 

3. Architectural; from DAG Architects, dated 10/04/2023; labeled “Bid Set” 

 
 

 
 

APPENDIX A
Page 38 of 58



 

  

Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal 

New Headquarters 

South Walton County Mosquito Control District 

4. Fire Protection, Plumbing, and Mechanical; from Watford Engineering, dated 06/20/2023; labeled “Bid Set” 

Sheets M302 and M303 listed on Architectural Project Index sheet G100 were not included in the mechanical 

drawing set. 

 

 
 

 

5. Electrical; from HG Engineers, dated 10/04/2023; labeled “Bid Set” 

 
 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A
Page 39 of 58



 

  

Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal 

New Headquarters 

South Walton County Mosquito Control District 

6. Telecomm, Security, and AV; from Logan Technology Group, dated 06/20/2023; labeled “Permit Set” 

 
7. The following drawing revisions are included in this proposal: 

A101, dated 02.06.24 

A103, dated 02.06.24 

A104, dated 02.08.24 

A113, dated 02.05.24 

A301, dated .02.02.24 

ADDED A314, dated 02.02.2024 

A401, dated 02.08.24 

A405, dated 02.05.24 

A501, dated 02.06.24 

E401, dated 02.12.24 

E701, dated 02.12.24 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A
Page 40 of 58



 

  

Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal 

New Headquarters 

South Walton County Mosquito Control District 

8. Specification Sections; from DAG Architects, dated June 2023: 

 
 

APPENDIX A
Page 41 of 58



 

  

Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal 

New Headquarters 

South Walton County Mosquito Control District 

 

APPENDIX A
Page 42 of 58



 

  

Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal 

New Headquarters 

South Walton County Mosquito Control District 

 

APPENDIX A
Page 43 of 58



 

  

Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal 

New Headquarters 

South Walton County Mosquito Control District 

 

9. Geotechnical Engineering Report; from Nova, dated June 21, 2022 
  

APPENDIX A
Page 44 of 58



 

  

Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal 

New Headquarters 

South Walton County Mosquito Control District 

Section 3: 

Clarifications & Assumptions 
This GMP Proposal is based on the following clarifications and assumptions: 

• A $15,000 allowance for Walton County building plan review and permit costs only is included in this proposal. No 

costs for site/civil permits are included. 

• It is assumed that the plans and specifications have been coordinated with the requirements of the Geotechnical 

Report. If modifications to the plans, specs or subcontractors’ proposed scope of work is required due to 

recommendations from the Geotech Report, costs for such are not included in this proposal. 

• Monthly utility services charges (electrical, water, sewer, gas, etc.) are not included in this proposal.  It is 

assumed that all existing services will provide adequate temporary services to construction services. 

• An Escalation Contingency of 1% of the project costs is included in this proposal for the sole purpose of addressing 

potential legitimate and validated cost escalations from subcontractors/vendors during procurement. Any unused 

funds will be returned to general Owner Contingency. 

• No hazardous material surveying or abatement is included in this proposal. 

• No costs for temporary heating and cooling for the building have been included in the general requirements 

estimate contained in this proposal. WSI intends to use permanent HVAC equipment for use during construction.  

• No building envelope consultant, building envelope commissioning agent (BECxA) or building envelope design 

review services are included in this proposal. 

• No costs for building systems Commissioning are included in this proposal. 

• No FF&E is included in this proposal. 

• No costs for sustainable building initiatives certification are included in this proposal. 

• As there are no Small/Minority business requirements or goals set forth by SWCMCD, no Small/Minority business 

participation is guaranteed through the scope contained in this proposal. 

• No costs for utility service connections, tap fees, permanent utility start-up fees, temporary or permanent utility 

consumption costs are included in this proposal. 

• It is assumed that adequate water pressure is available for fire protection system needs and, as such, no fire pump 

is included in this proposal. 

• It is assumed that line voltage power needs have been coordinated with all other design disciplines and that 

electrical drawings provide power where necessary. 

• The Builder’s Risk value carried in this proposal is an allowance based on the high end of indications received when 

obtaining quotes. Actual costs for this policy may need to be reconciled once the project is bound. Any unused 

funds will be returned to Contingency. 

• The precast wainscot rain ledge is assumed to be cast stone. 

• A $240,000 allowance for pedestrian steel guardrail along creek, bridges and porches of building and decking for 

bridges is included in this proposal.  The allowance is not intended to include structural/engineering inspections 

of bridges. 

• Per verbal direction from SWCMCD, no costs for repairs to the Northernmost pedestrian bridge are included in 

this proposal. 

APPENDIX A
Page 45 of 58



 

  

Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal 

New Headquarters 

South Walton County Mosquito Control District 

• No costs for casework in conference room 009 are included in this proposal. 

• Casework material requirements differ between Specifications and Drawings. This proposal includes costs based 

on Specification requirements, except as noted: 

o Cabinet hardware schedule reference A501 

o ½” thickness solid countertops at top and 1 ½” thickness at front edge 

o Cabinets and tops meet or exceed Architectural Woodworking Institute’s (AWI) custom grade 

requirements 

• TPO membrane at the mezzanine deck per A2/A322 is not included in this proposal. 

• Fire treated sheathing is not included in this proposal. 

• Furring out/down of the board room ceilings is not included in this proposal. 

• There are anticipated issues with the roof truss layout as shown per plan. Costs for this scope of work may need 

to be reconciled based on final design solution. 

• The mechanical platform for the outside unit is not included in this proposal. 

• Due to lack of specification, downspout protectors/guars are not included in this proposal. 

• No restroom wall tile is included in this proposal due to issues with the finish schedule. 

• Black epoxy resin tops are included in this proposal. Color changes may incur additional costs. 

• The Fire Department Connection (FDC) scope was defined too late to be included in subcontractors’ bids and, as 

such, costs for FDC are not included in this proposal. 

• It is assumed that the porch areas are to utilize sidewall fire protection heads. 

• Reverse Osmosis Filter equipment is assumed to be provided by others. Installation for equipment is included in 

this proposal. 

• Due to lack of clearly defined requirements, the chemical hood is not included in this proposal. 

• Direct Digital Control System is not provided. Stand-alone thermostat is included in this proposal. 

• It is assumed that current electrical service voltages are adequate and, as such, no transformers are included in 

this proposal. 

• It is assumed that exposed conduit is acceptable in select areas where work must be installed with no adjacent 

structure (i.e. attic) in which to conceal conduits exists. 

• A $75,000 allowance for Access Control (ACS), Security, Intrusion Detection System (IDS), Audio/Visual (AV) 

systems and their testing and programming is included in this proposal. The value of this allowance is not 

supported by a particular basis of design due to lack of clear information. 

• New gravel parking lots are assumed to be 4” of 57 stone. Striping of gravel lots is not included in this proposal. 

• Utility connections to relocated facilities are not defined and therefore not included in this proposal. 

• This proposal assumes that French drains are 4’ deep, 18” wide with corrugated and perforated pipe wrapped in 

fabric with 57 stone and 6” of cover on all sides. 

• The directional bore of SR-393 as shown on C7.1 will consist of one 2” HDPE pipe and will not include the pipe 

sleeve as indicated by the referenced note. 

• It is assumed that no import of topsoil is required for landscaping purposes and that on-site materials are 

adequate. 

• It is assumed that new irrigation will be tapped into existing irrigation and no new services are required. 

• Due to undefined requirements, an allowance of $75,000 for gates and fencing is included in this proposal. 

APPENDIX A
Page 46 of 58



 

  

Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal 

New Headquarters 

South Walton County Mosquito Control District 

• A $300,000 allowance for grassing/sodding is included in this proposal. This value was established as an estimated 

cost to sod per the extents indicated by the design team. There exists an opportunity for substantial savings to 

limit the extents of sod. 

• No under-slab drainage/capillary fill is included in this proposal. It is assumed that the structural fill being used to 

establish grade is sufficient for this purpose. 

• Mass dewatering systems are excluded from this proposal. Incidental rainwater removal is included with each 

trade. 

  

APPENDIX A
Page 47 of 58



 

  

Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal 

New Headquarters 

South Walton County Mosquito Control District 

Section 4: 

Summary Tabulation of Guaranteed Maximum Price  

 

 

APPENDIX A
Page 48 of 58



 

  

Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal 

New Headquarters 

South Walton County Mosquito Control District 

Section 5: 

Direct Cost of Work 

 

APPENDIX A
Page 49 of 58



 

  

Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal 

New Headquarters 

South Walton County Mosquito Control District 

APPENDIX A
Page 50 of 58



 

  

Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal 

New Headquarters 

South Walton County Mosquito Control District 

 

  

APPENDIX A
Page 51 of 58



 

  

Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal 

New Headquarters 

South Walton County Mosquito Control District 

Section 6: 

General Conditions (Staffing) Costs 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A
Page 52 of 58



 

  

Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal 

New Headquarters 

South Walton County Mosquito Control District 

Section 7: 

General Requirements Costs 

 

APPENDIX A
Page 53 of 58



Page 54 of 58



Old Business

Page 55 of 58



Page 56 of 58



New Business

Page 57 of 58



South Walton County Mosquito Control District 
 

Director  Commissioners  
Darrin Dunwald  Seat 1 – Doug Liles  

 Seat 2 – Steve Young 
 Seat 3 – Kristine Faulk 

 
 

Board Meeting 
Action Items 

 
Item Assigned to: 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

Page 58 of 58


	green section dividers
	2024 0321 Agenda.pdf
	2024 0215 Regular Board Meeting Minutes.pdf
	green section dividers
	Financial update Feb 2024.pdf
	CFY vs Budget.pdf
	Sheet1

	CFY vs PFY.pdf
	Sheet1

	green section dividers
	green section dividers
	Feb Operations.pdf
	February 2024 Report (AutoRecovered).pdf
	A133-2019 Exhibit A - GMP Amendment.pdf
	green section dividers.pdf
	Board Meeting To Do List.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



